SID J WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF FLORIDA

FEB 2 A 192 CLERI By Uchief Deputy Clerk

CASE NO.: 84, 917 L.T. CASE NO. 94-882CA 02

SEAN F. MURPHY,

Appellant,

v.

CITY OF PORT ST. LUCIE, FLORIDA, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida,

Appellee.

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

On appeal from the Circuit Court of the Nineteenth Judicial Circuit, In and For St. Lucie County, Florida (Civil Division).

Sean F. Murphy 1956 S.E. Dranson Circle Port St. Lucie, FL

Pro Se Appellant

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The City of Port St. Lucie implemented a program to provide modernized central water and sewer service to all property in the City over an eight to ten year period. Pursuant to this plan, the City acquired ownership of the water and sewer utility from St. Lucie County on October 1, 1994.

As Councilman Ankrom described it, the acquisition of the utility and the extension of lines to all property in the city are part of "our program of getting sewer and water throughout the city" and based on "a policy set in the beginning that Council wanted to see sewer and water lines in front of every home in this city within the next ten years." Intervenor's Exhibit # 12, p. 8. As the City Council has stated: "The city's operation of the system is the first step in creating a unified water and sewer system throughout the city." Intervenor's Exhibit # 21, page 5.

On May 4, 1994, the City hired Hartman & Associates, experts in the field of utility systems, to conduct a study of the County's utility system and prepare a report, titled "Partial Due Diligence Investigation." The due diligence report was not commissioned to determine whether the Council should proceed with the project, "but for the express purpose of determining the physical status of what [the City was] accepting responsibility for." Intervenor's Exhibit # 21, page 4, statements of Mayor Minsky.

At trial, the Due Diligence Report was admitted into evidence as Intervenor's Exhibit # 1. Also at trial, Howard Woodrum, P.E., an expert in Water and wastewater treatment systems, testified as to matters contained in the report as did Gerald Hartman, P.E., the principal engineer in charge of preparing the report.

The Consulting Engineer Gerald Hartman found a "General lack of Proper Maintenance on the plant" and found lacking a needed and customary program for preventive maintenance. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p. 11-3; Testimony of Gerald Hartman.

In regard to water supply system, Hartman disclosed that the majority of the facilities in the water system presently require general repair and maintenance. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p. 2-24. In particular, Water treatment Plant No. 2 "exhibited a lack of preventive maintenance program necessary to keep the facility in proper functioning order". Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p. 2-31. Numerous components of the treatment plant also need replacing or refurbishing. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p. 2-31.

The well-sites also require general preventive maintenance which is not currently provided. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p. 2-31. Further, the pumping stations are in critical need of equipment repair and replacement and both stations are operating without any auxiliary generators. Exhibit # 1, p. 2-31.

The Due Diligence Report also revealed a general state of disrepair and lack of maintenance for the Wastewater treatment facilities. Repairs or replacements were called for in virtually

every aspect of the system. Exhibit # 1, p. 3-82-88. The Southport Wastewater treatment plant, the plant currently servicing the most customers, requires repairs and "major maintenance" and "is in dire need of being expanded." Exhibit # 1, p. 3-82-88.

٦r

At trial, Howard Woodrum, P.E., testified that the present pumping stations of the water system are in serious need of equipment repair or replacement. From his experience, a great deal of capital would be required to bring the present equipment up to proper standards for reliable operation. Further, much of the Plant equipment and the bulk of the existing pipelines have approached the end of their useful lifetime. In summary, Woodrum testified that the present system was a liability instead of an asset to the community.

Woodrum also testified that the sewage and runoff collection lines need immediate repair to prevent the current processing of a quantity of water/waste that far exceeds the quantity that is actually placed into the ground system via designed inlet sources. Hartman described this process as Infiltration and Inflow (I/I) problem. The gist of the problem stems from rainwater and groundwater leaking into the wastewater system from deteriorating or defective pipes, connections, etc. The customer gets charged for water never used. Hartman concluded that I/I is a significant problem for the utility. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 9-10 -- 9-16; 3-24 -- 3-27.

Woodrum also noted that the present equipment does not have

installed spare capacity to cover breakdowns and that maintenance and repair may be difficult or impossible because manufacturer nameplates are missing.

The City officials have also expressed their alarm over the system's deterioration. Mayor Minsky stated that "the physical condition of the plant is almost catastrophic and getting worse." Intervenor's Exhibit # 21, page 4. Vice Mayor Christianson noted the "deplorable lack of maintenance". Intervenor's Exhibit # 21, page 4. Councilman Anderson was "appalled" at the condition of the utility and noted that "there has been virtually little or no maintenance on the plants", employee's safety is at risk with inadequate procedures and equipment, and the labor force is critically understaffed. Intervenor's Exhibit # 21, page 7.

Hartman identified several necessary maintenance programs, missing from the current system or presently inadequate, which immediately will immediately and significantly increase the operating costs of the utility. Exhibit # 1, p. ES-24. For wastewater, these maintenance programs and ensuing additional costs include: Sewer Cleaning/Sealing, Etc. (\$105,000); Manhole Repair (\$35,000); STEP Systems (125,000); Maintenance Collection/Transmission (\$146,000); Maintenance Labor (\$250,000); Maintenance General/Operations (\$200,000). Exhibit # 1, p. ES-25. The total additional funds necessary for these wastewater programs is \$861,000.00.

The Water System currently requires the following additional programs and funds: Meter replacement (\$ 47,000); Leak Detection

(\$ 40,000); Valve/Hydrant (\$ 30,000); Backflow Prevention (\$
15,000); Cross Connection (\$ 10,000); Preventative Maintenance (\$
125,000 plus 125,000 for wastewater = 250,000); and Maintenance
General (\$200,000). The total additional funding for these
identified water maintenance programs is \$ 592,000.00. Exhibit #
1, p. ES-25.

The total <u>additional</u> funding needed annually for these identified maintenance programs is **\$ 1,453,000.00.** The lacking maintenance programs may constitute as much as <u>20 percent</u> (20%) of the existing operations budget. Exhibit # 1, p. ES-25. Hartman notes that the apparent positive operating results of the utility in the last three years are due in part to "the <u>lack of</u> <u>investment in maintenance</u> and the deferred payment of any principal portion of the debt." Exhibit # 1, p. 7-5.

The Hartman Report notes that a potential seller will, typically prior to acquisition, make efforts to improve cash flow position of the system by minimizing staff. Exhibit # 1, p. 7-5. In 1985, when General Development had half the present customers as today, the system had more than twice the maintenance force as it does today (16 in 1985; 7 Today). Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p. ES-20, 6-5, 6-6 (Table), 11-3. While this dramatic decrease in maintenance staff occurred, the system and facilities had aged requiring more maintenance, the system was expanded requiring more maintenance, and new facilities were constructed requiring new maintenance. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p. 6-5.

County and GDU records also show that the number of total

staff is presently down to 49 compared to 54 in 1985 when the system serviced much fewer accounts. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p. 6-6. The NorthPort Water Treatment Plant staff is outnumbered two to one based on its production when compared to the staff and production of the Fort Pierce Utility. Intervenor's Exhibit # 13, page 6, Statement of Dan Sneed, North Port Facilities Operation Director. Considering the whole utility system, the present staffing with the addition of one more person is half the historically necessary levels of staff. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p.ES-19 and 6-6.

Ξ¥.

Interim Utilities Director and Chief Engineer Sam Amerson requested six (6) new maintenance positions <u>and</u> six (6) new operation positions for Fiscal Year 94/94. Budget funding for the added staff was never approved. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p. 6-6. Significantly, this minimum increase in staff, needed to approach 1985 customer staff ratio, "would result in an <u>additional rate increase.</u>" Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p. 6-6 (emphasis supplied).

The above discussion of necessary additional staff does not take into account further necessary staff and costs for planning, engineering, legal, billing, accounting, administrative, budget/purchasing, computer services, personnel services and regulatory coordination personnel. These historical functions were accomplished in Miami or later at the County or by County Consultants. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, p. ES-20. It can be assumed that additional staff will be required to be employed by

the City to serve these additional functions.

The Due Diligence Report sets forth the capital improvements required to correct present system deficiencies, regulatory requirements, and provide service to future customers that connect within the Five Year planning period. The majority of these improvements are required to continue <u>current</u> operations and to serve current customers and must be accomplished in the first two years of the five year planning period. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-1 to end.

Water System. The Five Year plan for improvements to the Water System (Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-1 to 9-9) identifies a number of improvements required to maintain current operations and which are scheduled to occur in the first two years. Capacity analysis of the raw water supply "indicates that <u>immediate</u> improvements are necessary to meet not only the projected flows but also the <u>current</u> flows." Exhibit # 1, 9-2. Accordingly, nine new wells are scheduled for 1994/5 FY and four more in 1996. The Budgeted amounts are \$1,920,000 in 1995 and \$ 1,160,000 in 1996. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-2. Alternatively, 3 wells each are scheduled for 1998 and 1999 with a budgeted cost of \$ 720,000 and \$ 670,000 respectively.

Other capital improvements to the water system not currently budgeted include \$40,000 annually beginning in FY 1995 for wellfield rehabilitation; a one time water resource study in the amount of \$200,000 scheduled for FY 1995; a one time Safe Water Act study to identify potential violations is budgeted in FY 1995

in the amount of \$100,000. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-2 - 9-3.

The Water Treatment Facilities require major improvements and modifications over the next two years. These improvements are necessary to maintain current operations at an acceptable level. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-2. These improvements are budgeted for FY 1996 and for the amount of \$ 3,500,000. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-3 - 9-6.

The water pump stations also require renovations. A permanent building must be constructed at the Mid Port Pump station to house the chlorination and ammonia systems and prevent evident corrosion problems; the cost of this project will be \$ 110,000 and is budgeted for 1995. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-6. Immediate improvements to the South Port Pump station consist of refurbishing the building, ground storage tank, pump system and replacing tanks in 1995 in the amount of \$ 105,000. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-6. Another \$ 735,000 is budgeted for 1997 for expansion and improvements to the pump stations.

Table 9-1 of the Due Diligence Report sets forth the Water Systems Capital Improvements Schedule. A total of \$ 14,060,000 is budgeted for improvements to the water system over the next five years with 7.5 million spent in the first two years. As Lee Hammon, Facilities Operator of all the plants, stated: "These are all big ticket items; they are capital expenses." Intervenor's Exhibit # 6, page 4.

These improvements over five years are necessary for the system to continue to serve the present customers. For example,

expanding the operations building is required because the existing building "does not provide adequate room for the facilities" and "needs to be doubled in size." Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-5; # 13, page 3. A unit that thickens the sludge must be completely replaced, the centrifuge unit needs to be replaced at a cost of \$400,001/, expanding the Save All tank is "crucial", softening units must be replaced, etc. The reason that improvements are necessary is because the entire system is 34 years old and has not had maintenance done in the past. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-4 - 9-6; # 13, page 3-4.

Wastewater System. A number of major improvements are scheduled for the Wastewater system. The wastewater facilities presently provide wastewater service to 10,888 accounts. These accounts can be broken down to 2,271 accounts in the North Port WWTP service area, 7,308 in the South Port WWTP service area, and 922 accounts within the WestPort WWTP service area. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 9-9. South Port is operating at approximately 80% of its design capacity and actually operating at nearly 100% of its operating capabilities (Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 9-21); West Port is operating at nearly 100% of its permitted capacity (Intervenor's Exhibit 9-24), and North Port is allegedly operating at 47% of its permitted capacity if it is staffed higher.

Because the wastewater facilities are operating at such high

^{1/} This item was not included in Hartman's list of necessary improvements; hence this figure can be added to the total cost of immediate improvements to the water system.

capacities, "improvements are required at all of the [Wastewater Treatment Plants] to meet <u>current</u> and future requirements. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 9-18.

A "critical" and immediate improvement to the North Port WWTP is the design and construction of a sludge stabilization facility because the current level of sludge stabilization fails to meet Federal Regulations. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 9-18. Construction of the sludge facilities must begin by October 1994 and the cost is approximately \$502,700. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 9-19. Also, the plant has been operating without a treatment plant permit and a deep well injection permit since 1993; therefore, permits need to be obtained immediately in the amount of \$31,000. Also, in conjunction with construction of sludge facility, modifications of existing equipment must be accomplished in the amount of \$276,000. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 9-19. The total costs for immediate improvements to North Port over the next two years is \$ 810,000. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 9-19 and 9-20 and Table 9-2. Lastly, \$3, 136,000 is needed over the next three years for North Port expansion.

Immediate improvements are required at South Port Waste Water Treatment Plant with an estimated cost of over 5.5 million dollars over the next three years; 5.1 million of the costs of these improvements are scheduled for FY 1995 and 1996. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 9-21. South Port serves the largest sewer area of the city or 7,308 accounts out of 10,888.

Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 3-58; 9-21. Built in the 1960's, South Port was the original plant for the Port St. Lucie area. South Port is operating at 80% of its design capacity, however, "the facility is actually operating at nearly 100% of its operating capabilities."2/ Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 9-21. South Port is located in the South Eastern portion of the City "by Club Med." Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 3-58 and figure 2-2; # 11, page 5. South Port provides gray water. Intervenors Exhibit # 11, page 7.

The 5.5 million dollar expansion of South Port needs to be accomplished to meet current needs. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 3-85, 9-21, 5-26; Intervenor's Exhibit # 11, p. 6-7. As described in the Due Diligence Report:

In general, the South Port WWTP is in need of repairs, painting, and major maintenance. Much of which cannot be performed until additional capacity is provided so the units can be taken out of service. The plant is currently operating at 80 percent capacity. FDEP guidelines state that at this level of operation, construction of additional capacity should be under way. The 1.2 MGD portion of the WWTP cannot handle its permitted flows, and as a result the 1.0 MGD train is being operated at 150% of its permitted capacity to make up for problems associated with the 1.2 MGD train. Therefore, the facility is in dire need of being expanded.

Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 3-85 (emphasis added).3/

2/ Dan Sneed, Facilities Operation Director of South Port, said the plant " is at 100% of its capacity organically and hydraulically." Intervenor's Exhibit # 11, page 8.

3/ Numerous other improvements are needed to South Port, more fully discussed in the Due Diligence Report at pages 3-85 through 3-89. One example is that the sludge digester do not work properly, so the county has created a makeshift stabilization facility; however this facility must be replaced because the method Bruce Sloan, Chief of Operations for South Port, has said:

"This plant was built in the 1960's and has long seen its useful life. It is undersized, and we can't put much flow through because of the size of the clarifiers, it also needs major work."

Intervenor's Exhibit # 11, p. 6-7.

In reference to one of the two operating units at South Port, Sloan remarked: "It is undersized and basically useless for this plant. This plant processes 1.2 million gallons per day, 400,000 gallons is the unit's maximum capacity per day. We are over working the other plant to make up for this unit." Intervenor's Exhibit # 11, p. 6-7. Mayor Minsky acknowledged that the design was never realistic for its intended use. There is no backup system for the plant. "It can't handle much more; there is no room for error. We have no forgiveness if anything goes wrong."

Additional immediate Capital needs of South Port WWTP include \$ 300,000 for a monitoring well in FY 1995 to satisfy current state regulations; \$ 92,000 for an MIT test. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-2. Overall, \$5,094,000 is needed in Capital improvements to South Port in the next two (2) years and another \$409,000 in the FY 1997. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, Table 9-2. In the last two years -- FY 1998 and 1999 -- \$145,100 is budgeted for improvements to South Port. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, Table 9-2.

West Port will require \$712,000 in the next two (2) years

is hazardous and unsafe to employees. # 1, 3-87.

for effluent disposal; this is needed because West Port is operating at nearly 100% of its permitted capacity. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, 9-24. In addition, \$1,512,000 is needed in 1998 and 1999 for West Port expansion. Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, Table 9-2.

The three year Capital Improvement Plan for water calls for \$12,870,000 in costs; the improvements for wastewater will cost \$11,646,000. Intervenors Exhibit # 1, page 10-1 and 10-5. The grand total funds needed for improvements to the system in the next three years is \$24,517,000. Including the costs for funds over the fourth and fifth years, the total Capital Improvement costs are \$32,224,000.

The annual costs for maintenance programs which are not currently budgeted but which are required is 1,453,000 annually; over a five year period, \$7,265,000 is required for maintenance programs.

Therefore, over the next five years, the city will spend, conservatively, 40 million dollars on improvements and maintenance to the system.

The forty million dollar figure exceeds the \$36.7 million dollar value placed on the utility by the City. Testimony of Gerald Hartman; Testimony of Jim Anderson.

Financial Picture of the Utility and Source of Funds

The utility currently does not have sufficient funds for either the maintenance program or for critical capital

improvements.

For one, there is insufficient money in the operations budget to cover any maintenance or improvements. Even minor repairs, such as to stairwells at the South Port WWTP Plant, "have depleted every penny in the operations budget." Intervenor's Exhibit # 13, page 8. The utility would be actually losing substantial amounts of money if proper maintenance was provided and the debt was being paid. As the Due Diligence Report concluded, "Positive operating results are reflected due to the lack of investment in maintenance and the deferred payment of any principal portion of the debt." Intervenor's Exhibit # 1, page 7-5.

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