IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED

SID J. WHITE

FEB 27 1995

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

Cfilef Deputy Clerk

CASE NO. 84,917

SEAN F. MURPHY

Appellant,

VS.

THE STATE OF FLORIDA, TAXPAYERS, PROPERTY OWNERS AND CITIZENS OF THE CITY OF PORT ST. LUCIE, FLORIDA, INCLUDING NONRESIDENTS OWNING PROPERTY OR SUBJECT TO TAXATION THEREIN, AND ALL OTHERS HAVING OR CLAIMING ANY RIGHT, TITLE OR INTEREST IN PROPERTY TO BE AFFECTED BY THE ISSUANCE BY PLAINTIFF OF THE 1994A BONDS DESCRIBED HEREIN OR TO BE AFFECTED IN ANY WAY THEREBY,

Appellees.

APPEAL FROM THE NINETEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR ST. LUCIE COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT FOUND THAT THE REQUIREMENTS OF LAW WERE SATISFIED WITH RESPECT TO THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF THE 1994A SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND THE ISSUANCE OF THE 1994A BONDS. APPELLANT HAS MADE NO SHOWING THAT THE RULING OF THE COURT IS NOT SUPPORTED BY SUBSTANTIAL COMPETENT EVIDENCE.

POINT II

THE CITY COUNCIL FOUND THAT THE EXTENSION OF WATER AND SEWER UTILITY SERVICE TO THE PARCELS IN THE CITY WHICH DO NOT CURRENTLY HAVE SUCH SERVICE CONFERS A SPECIAL BENEFIT ON SUCH PROPERTIES; THIS FINDING WAS PROPERLY UPHELD BY THE TRIAL COURT.

POINT III

THE PROCEEDINGS RELATIVE TO THE PURCHASE OF THE WATER AND SEWER UTILITY ARE NOT MATERIAL TO THE VALIDATION OF THE 1994A BONDS AND THE 1994A SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS IN THE INSTANT PROCEEDINGS; THESE PROCEEDINGS WERE VALIDATED BY AN EARLIER JUDGMENT OF THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR ST. LUCIE COUNTY AND WERE NOT PROPERLY BEFORE THE TRIAL COURT IN THIS PROCEEDING.

POINT IV

THERE WAS SUBSTANTIAL, COMPETENT EVIDENCE BEFORE THE TRIAL COURT UPON WHICH IT COULD CONCLUDE THAT A REFERENDUM PETITION UNDER ARTICLE VII OF THE PORT ST. LUCIE CITY CHARTER WAS NEVER PRESENTED TO THE CITY CLERK AND THEREFORE, THAT SHE WAS NOT REQUIRED TO ISSUE A CERTIFICATE OF INSUFFICIENCY.

POINT V

THE REFERENDUM PROCEDURES SET FORTH IN ARTICLE VII OF THE PORT ST. LUCIE CITY CHARTER DO NOT VIOLATE THE PROVISIONS OF THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE UNITED STATES CONSTITUTION OR THE PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE I, SECTION V, OF THE FLORIDA CONSTITUTION, AND THE ATTEMPTS BY THE CITY CLERK TO ASSIST THE PETITIONERS' COMMITTEE LIKEWISE DID NOT VIOLATE THE PETITIONERS' RIGHTS UNDER THE FOREGOING PROVISIONS.

POINT VI

THERE WAS SUBSTANTIAL COMPETENT EVIDENCE BEFORE THE TRIAL COURT UPON WHICH IT COULD CONCLUDE THAT THE PROPOSED EXPANSION OF WATER AND SEWERLINES DOES NOT VIOLATE THE PROVISIONS OF THE CITY'S COMPREHENSIVE PLAN.

POINT VII

THE PROVISION IN THE MASTER BOND RESOLUTION ALLOWING THE CITY TO COVENANT TO BUDGET AND APPROPRIATE FUNDS SUPPLEMENTAL TO THE 1994A ASSESSMENTS FROM LEGALLY AVAILABLE SOURCES OF MONEY DERIVED FROM SOURCES OTHER THAN AD VALOREM TAXATION DOES NOT VIOLATE ARTICLE VII, SECTION 12, FLORIDA CONSTITUTION.

POINT I

THE TRIAL COURT'S FINDINGS THAT THE REQUIREMENTS OF LAW WERE SATISFIED WITH RESPECT TO THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF THE 1994A SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND THE ISSUANCE OF THE 1994A BONDS SHOULD BE UPHELD BECAUSE APPELLANT HAS MADE NO SHOWING THAT THE RULING OF THE COURT IS NOT SUPPORTED BY SUBSTANTIAL COMPETENT EVIDENCE.

The validation hearing in this case spanned three full days, which included opening statements, testimony of over a dozen witnesses, introduction of extensive documentary evidence, and closing arguments of counsel. Intervenors below were permitted to introduce virtually every item of evidence proffered, over repeated objections of counsel for the City as to relevance and/or authenticity. After the conclusion of the trial, both parties submitted memoranda of law to the trial court (CA-5, CA-6, CA-7), and the trial judge requested transcripts of closing arguments of counsel for his review (CA-4).

Approximately one month after the trial had concluded, the trial court rendered its final judgment validating the 1994A Special Assessments and the 1994A Bonds (CA-8). In that judgment the trial court stated:

13. Numerous taxpayers, citizens and other persons have intervened in these proceedings for the purpose of interposing objections to the granting of the prayers set forth in the complaint. This Court has made a review of the matters alleged and raised in such objections. This Court, however, finds no basis upon which to deny the petition of the plaintiff for validation of the 1994A Bonds and the 1994A Assessments. (CA-8; 4)

* * *

15. This Court has found that all requirements of the Constitution and laws of the State of Florida pertaining to the proceedings in [this] matter have been strictly followed. (CA-8; 5)

The City submits that the findings and judgment of the Trial Court in this matter (1) come to this Court clothed with a presumption of correctness, *Delgado v. Strong*, 360 So.2d 73,

75 (Fla. 1978); (2) should be affirmed "if upon the pleadings and the evidence before the trial court, there was any theory or principle of law which would support the trial court's judgment," *Cohen v. Mohawk*, 137 So.2d 222, 225 (Fla. 1962) and (3) should not be overturned unless there is a showing that there was not substantial, competent evidence in the record to support its findings, *Strawgate v. Turner*, 339 So.2d 1112, 1113 (Fla. 1976); *Westerman v. Shell's City*, Inc., 265 So.2d 43, 45 (Fla. 1972); *Dory Auerbach Realty Company v. Waser*, 359 So.2d 902, 903 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1978).

As the City's arguments in Points II through VII demonstrate, there was substantial competent evidence before the Trial Court upon which it could base its findings referred to above. For this reason, the City submits that the judgment of the Trial Court validating the 1994A Bonds and the 1994A Assessments should be affirmed on this appeal.

POINT II

THE FINDING OF THE CITY COUNCIL THAT THE EXTENSION OF WATER AND SEWER UTILITY SERVICE TO THE PARCELS IN THE CITY WHICH DO NOT CURRENTLY HAVE SUCH SERVICE CONFERS A SPECIAL BENEFIT ON SUCH PROPERTIES WAS PROPERLY UPHELD BY THE TRIAL COURT; SUCH AN EXTENSION PLAN DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A "COMMUNITY-WIDE" PROGRAM WHERE ALL PROPERTIES RECEIVE A SIMILAR BENEFIT; THEREFORE, THE 1994A ASSESSMENTS WERE PROPERLY VALIDATED BY THE TRIAL COURT

The City of Port St. Lucie contains over 70,000 residents. (AA-6; 64). Fifteen thousand (15,000) parcels of land in the City are currently served by central water and sewer service (AA-6; 60).

The City Council determined to extend central water and sewer service to the parcels that do not currently have such service in order to prevent the proliferation of wells and septic tanks in the City and to provide a means of eventually eliminating the existing septic tanks. (CA-14; 26).

The City Council determined in Resolution No. 94-R44 that the expansion of water and sewer utility service to properties not currently served by central water and sewer service conferred a benefit on such properties in an amount not less than the amounts of assessments against such properties. (CA-12; 2). The City's Consulting Engineer, Alton Harvey, testified at trial that he had given his opinion to the City Council that the amount of the assessments did not exceed the benefits to the assessed properties. (AA-6; 72).

In Florida, assessments levied by municipalities are presumed valid, and the burden of proving their invalidity rests upon the one challenging the assessment. *South Trail Fire Control District v. State*, 273 So.2d 380, 384 (Fla. 1973).

The determination whether benefits are conferred by an improvement program so as to justify the levy of assessments to pay the cost of the improvements is a legislative function, and the determination of the legislative body is conclusive as to the fact of benefit unless the

challenger can show that the assessments were (a) palpably arbitrary, (b) grossly unfair and confiscatory, or (c) so devoid of a reasonable basis as to be arbitrary and to constitute an abuse of power. South Trail Fire Control District, supra, at 383; Bodner v. City of Coral Gables, 245 So.2d 250, 253 (Fla. 1971); City of Hallandale v. Meekins, 237 So.2d 318, 320-21 (Fla. 1970); Rosche v. City of Hollywood, 55 So.2d 909, 913 Fla. 1952). If reasonable men might differ on the question whether benefits flow from a particular improvement program, the courts will not interfere with the exercise of the legislative power to levy assessments. City of Hallandale, supra, at 321.

The Intervenors below totally failed to show by any competent evidence that the action of the City Council satisfied any of the foregoing tests of insufficiency. The Trial Court refused to disturb the findings of the City Council and found that the 1994A Assessments were validly levied. It is the City's position that the Trial Court's ruling should be upheld on this appeal.

The Intervenors maintained throughout the trial -- and the Appellant continues to argue on appeal in his POINT VI -- that the 1994A Special Assessments are really a tax and not an assessment and, therefore, that a referendum is required for their levy. They base their argument on the phrase, "city-wide," which was used by the court in *Hanna v. City of Palm Bay*, 570 So.2d 320, 322 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991).

Hanna involved a city program to resurface <u>all streets</u> in the City of Palm Bay and to assess <u>all properties</u> within the City for the benefit conferred thereby. The program was to be carried out in phases, but, eventually, <u>all streets</u> were to be resurfaced and <u>all properties</u> assessed, so that there was truly to be a similar benefit to all the properties in the City. The Fifth District Court of Appeal reasoned that a program to resurface all the streets in the City did not confer a special benefit on particular properties, but benefitted the community as a whole.

The flaw in the Intervenors'/Appellant's argument is in their attempt to apply the phrase "city-wide" to the instant case. Water and sewer utility service is ultimately planned to be extended only to properties in the City which do not currently have such service, i.e. excluding the 15,000 properties already served. The fact that there is a significant number of properties in the City already connected to the central water and sewer system, and that these properties are not being assessed for the extension of service, clearly takes this case out of the "city-wide" category which was before the Fifth District in *Hanna*.

As to the benefit issue, the rule in Florida with respect to special benefits from sanitary sewer system improvements was set forth by the Florida Supreme Court in *City of Hallandale v. Meekins, supra,* 321, where the Court said:

When a particular improvement by its nature is designed essentially to afford special or peculiar benefits to abutting or other property within the protective proximity of the improvement, it is presumed that special or peculiar benefits may or will accrue to the property so situated, and thus special assessments are permitted without an express finding or determination by the city that the property will be benefitted. [Citations omitted].

We think a sanitary sewer system is by its nature designed essentially to afford special or peculiar benefits to abutting or other property within the protective proximity of the improvement. It provides no benefit to the public generally as does the paving of a public street, nor does it confer any benefit upon property lying outside of the geographical boundaries by the improvement. Thus, there was a presumption of special benefits to the abutting and other property within the protective proximity of the improvement thereby relieving the City of the necessity of making a specific finding of benefits as to each parcel. (Emphasis supplied).

The program for extending water and sewer utility service to only those properties that do not currently have such service clearly falls within the ambit of the decided Supreme Court cases approving assessments for the expansion of utility service. The trial court's refusal to

disturb the City Council's findings of benefit with respect to the levy of the 1994A Special Assessments was supported by the record and should be upheld on this appeal.

POINT III

THE PROCEEDINGS RELATIVE TO THE PURCHASE OF THE WATER AND SEWER UTILITY SYSTEM, INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING UNDER CHAPTER 180, FLORIDA STATUTES, ARE NOT RELEVANT TO THE VALIDATION OF THE 1994A BONDS AND THE 1994A SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS IN THE INSTANT PROCEEDINGS; MOREOVER, THE PROCEEDINGS RELATIVE TO THE PURCHASE OF THE WATER AND SEWER UTILITY WERE PUT TO REST BY THE VALIDATION JUDGMENT VALIDATING THE TRANSFER BONDS WHICH WERE ISSUED IN SEPTEMBER 1994, TO ACQUIRE THE WATER AND SEWER UTILITY.

Appellant in this Court and the Intervenors below emphasize as a principal point of their case matters related to the water and sewer utility System which the City acquired from the County in September 1994. The gist of their argument is that the City is extending water and sewer lines to unserved properties primarily to finance capital improvements to the System and not for the benefit of the properties to which service from the System would be made available.

In support of their argument, the <u>Intervenors</u> below called and qualified as <u>Intervenor's</u> expert witness Gerald Hartman, the Consulting Engineer who had inspected the System on behalf of the City. Hartman testified, however, that the proposed capital improvement program for the System was planned to be financed from System revenues and the proceeds of the Transfer Bonds, issued at the time the City acquired the System, and <u>not</u> from revenues to be generated by the sewer expansion program. (CA-14; 150-51)

More fundamentally, however, it is the City's position on appeal, that matters relating to the decisions by the City (i) whether to acquire the System (involving considerations of the condition of the System and the other Chapter 180, Florida Statutes, requirements), (ii) whether to finance the transfer of the System from the County to the City through the issuance of revenue bonds (the Transfer Bonds), and (iii) whether to finance System improvements with the proceeds of the Transfer Bonds were: (A) not relevant to the question whether the City proceeded within its powers and according to law in authorizing the issuance of the 1994A Assessment Bonds and

the levy of the 1994A Assessments; (B) legislative decisions which have previously been subjected, without objection, to judicial scrutiny in the validation proceedings for the Transfer Bonds; (CA-9) and (C) moot because the City has issued the Transfer Bonds and owns the System. (CA-10)

The issues properly before the Trial Court in the instant validation proceeding were:

- (i) the City's authority under the constitution and laws of Florida to issue the 1994ABonds;
- (ii) the City's authority to spend the proceeds of the 1994A Bonds to extend water and sewer lines to unserved properties;
- (iii) the City's authority to pledge the 1994A Assessments and other security to secure repayment of the 1994A Bonds;
- (iv) the City's authority to levy the 1994A Assessments to pay the costs of extending the System; and
- (v) the legality of the City Council's proceedings with respect to the 1994A Bonds and the 1994 Assessments.

Warner Cable Communications, Inc. v. City of Niceville, 520 So.2d 245 (Fla. 1988); Risher v. Town of Inglis, 522 So.2d 355 (Fla. 1988); Lodwick v. School District of Palm Beach County, 506 So.2d 407 (Fla. 1987); Taylor v. Lee County, 498 So.2d 424 (Fla. 1986).

Legal or other matters which do not relate to (a) the City's authority to issue the 1994A Bonds, (b) the security therefor (the 1994A Assessments) or (c) the regularity of proceedings had in connection therewith are beyond the scope of validation (i.e., the court in a validation proceeding lacks subject matter jurisdiction over such collateral issues) and are not properly considered in a validation proceeding. *McCoy Restaurants, Inc. v. City of Orlando*, 392 So.2d 252, 254 (Fla. 1980).

• , .			
•			
•			
•			
•			
•			
•			
•			
•			
•			
_			
•			

Collateral issues include, but are not limited to, (1) the wisdom or expedience of undertaking a particular project and incurring debt as a means of its financing, (2) the financial and economic feasibility of the project proposed to be financed with bond proceeds, and (3) the financial feasibility of the proposed bond issue. Such questions are deemed by the courts to be legislative matters and may not properly be raised during such proceedings. *Partridge v. St. Lucie County*, 539 So.2d 6472 (Fla. 1989); *State v. Division of Bond Finance*, 530 So.2d 289 (Fla. 1988); *De Sha v. City of Waldo*, 444 So.2d 16 (Fla. 1984); *State v. Daytona Beach*, 431 So.2d 981 (Fla. 1983); *State v. City of Miami*, 103 So.2d 185 (Fla. 1958). The issue whether the City should acquire the System was clearly collateral to the proceedings regarding the 1994A Bonds and the 1994A Assessments and the finding of the trial court that the legal requirements with respect to the issuance of the 1994A Bonds and the levy of the 1994A Assessments were satisfied is supported by the record before the court and should be affirmed.

POINT IV

THERE WAS SUBSTANTIAL COMPETENT EVIDENCE BEFORE THE TRIAL COURT UPON WHICH IT COULD CONCLUDE THAT AN ARTICLE VII REFERENDUM PETITION UNDER THE CITY CHARTER WAS NEVER PRESENTED TO THE CITY CLERK AND, THEREFORE, THAT CLERK WAS NOT REQUIRED TO ISSUE A CERTIFICATE OF INSUFFICIENCY UNDER THE CHARTER.

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